
Regular Council Meeting – September 3, 2014 
Page 1 of 15 
 
  
 

CITY OF TAVARES 1 
MINUTES OF REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 2 

SEPTEMBER 3, 2014 3 
CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 4 

4:00 p.m. 5 
 6 

COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT     ABSENT 7 
 8 
Robert Wolfe, Mayor       9 
Lori Pfister, Vice Mayor          10 
Norman Hope, Councilmember 11 
Kirby Smith, Councilmember 12 
Robert Speaks, Councilmember 13 
 14 
STAFF PRESENT 15 
 16 
John Drury, City Administrator 17 
Robert Q. Williams, City Attorney 18 
Nancy Barnett, City Clerk 19 
Bill Neron, Economic Development Director 20 
Brad Hayes, Utility Director 21 
Lori Houghton, Finance Director 22 
Chris Thompson, Public Works Director 23 
Joyce Ross, Communications Director 24 
Lori Tucker, Human Resources Director 25 
Tammey Rogers, Community Services Director 26 
Richard Keith, Fire Department 27 
Mike Fitzgerald, Development Coordinator, Community Services 28 
 29 
I.  CALL TO ORDER 30 
 31 
Mayor Wolfe called the meeting to order at 4:06 p.m.  32 
 33 
II. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 34 
 35 
Pastor Brooks Braswell, Umatilla Baptist Church, gave the invocation and those present recited 36 
the pledge of allegiance. 37 
 38 
Pastor Braswell noted he would be performing the second wedding ceremony at the Pavilion on 39 
the Lake this coming Saturday. 40 
 41 
lll. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 42 
 43 
Mr. Drury requested to table Tab 11 – PBA Union Contract, to the next Council Meeting. 44 
 45 
MOTION 46 
 47 



Regular Council Meeting – September 3, 2014 
Page 2 of 15 
 
  
 
Norman Hope moved to approve the agenda [as amended], seconded by Robert Speaks. 1 
The motion carried unanimously 5-0. 2 
 3 
lV. APPROVAL OF MINUTES   4 
 5 
Tab 1) Approval of City Council Meeting Minutes –August 20, 2014  6 
 7 
MOTION 8 
 9 
Robert Speaks moved for approval of the minutes of August 20, 2014 as submitted, 10 
seconded by Kirby Smith 11 
 12 
The motion carried unanimously 5-0. 13 
 14 
V. PROCLAMATIONS/PRESENTATIONS 15 
 16 
Vl. SWEARING IN BY CITY ATTORNEY AND DISCLOSURE OF EX PARTE CONTACTS 17 
 18 
Attorney Williams advised that Tabs 6 (Large Scale Future Land Use Amendment – Transmittal 19 
Hearing – Dead River Marina) and 8 (Special Use Permit for Veterinary Clinic)  were quasi-20 
judicial. He asked those who wished to speak to stand and be sworn in. He asked Council if they 21 
wished to declare any ex parte communications.  22 
 23 
Councilmember Smith and Mayor Wolfe stated that they had each spoken with Rick Joyce, the 24 
owner of the property at 220 N. Rockingham (proposed veterinary clinic). 25 
 26 
Vll. READING OF ALL ORDINANCES/RESOLUTIONS 27 
 28 
Ms. Barnett read the following ordinances/resolutions by title only: 29 

 30 
 31 

ORDINANCE 2014-13 32 
 33 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF TAVARES AMENDING THE BOUNDARIES 34 
OF THE CITY BY ANNEXING APPROXIMATELY 11.4 ACRES LOCATED ON 35 
THE NORTH SIDE OF US 441 ADJACENT AND WEST OF 7TH SUNFISH 36 
STREET AND INCLUDING 7TH SUNFISH STREET WHICH IS A PRIVATE 37 
EASEMENT; REZONING SAID PROPERTY FROM LAKE COUNTY 38 
COMMUNITY COMMERCIAL (C-2) TO CITY OF TAVARES HIGHWAY 39 
COMMERCIAL (C-2); SUBJECT TO THE RULES, REGULATIONS AND 40 
OBLIGATIONS ORDAINED BY THE CITY OF TAVARES COUNCIL; 41 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 42 

 43 
 44 

ORDINANCE 2014-14 45 
 46 



Regular Council Meeting – September 3, 2014 
Page 3 of 15 
 
  
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF TAVARES, FLORIDA, AMENDING THE 1 
TAVARES COMPREHENSIVE PLAN FUTURE LAND USE MAP 2020, 2 
PROVIDING FOR A CHANGE OF FUTURE LAND USE DESIGNATION ON 3 
APPROXIMATELY 11.4 ACRES OF LAND GENERALLY LOCATED ON THE 4 
NORTH SIDE OF US 441 ADJACENT AND WEST OF 7TH SUNFISH STREET 5 
AND INCLUDING 7TH SUNFISH STREET WHICH IS A PRIVATE EASEMENT; 6 
FROM COUNTY COMMERCIAL CORRIDOR TO CITY COMMERCIAL; 7 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY AND CONFLICTS; PROVIDING FOR 8 
TRANSMITTAL; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 9 

 10 
RESOLUTION 2014 - 25 11 

 12 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE A COMMUNITY 13 
AESTHETIC FEATURE  AGREEMENT (CAF #2014-592-1) BETWEEN THE 14 
CITY OF TAVARES, AND THE FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF 15 
TRANSPORTATION FOR THE INSTALLATION AND MAINTENANCE OF A 16 
STANDALONE LOCAL ID MARKER  BY THE CITY; SETTING FORTH AN 17 
EFFECTIVE DATE 18 

 19 
RESOLUTION 2014-20 20 

 21 
 A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF TAVARES, FLORIDA, APPROVING A 22 
SPECIAL USE PERMIT TO ALLOW A VETERINARY CLINIC IN THE MIXED 23 
USE ZONING DISTRICT FOR PROPERTY ADDRESSED AS 220 NORTH 24 
ROCKINGHAM AVENUE; SUBJECT TO THE RULES, REGULATIONS AND 25 
OBLIGATIONS ORDAINED BY THE CITY OF TAVARES COUNCIL; 26 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 27 

 28 
Vlll. CONSENT AGENDA 29 

Mayor Wolfe asked for comment from the audience. 30 

MOTION 31 

Robert Speaks moved for approval of the Consent Agenda - Authorization to Negotiate a 32 
Loan with BB&T to Finance the Construction of Utility Lines at Sunset View Subdivision, 33 
seconded by Norman Hope. The motion carried unanimously 5-0. 34 

CITY ATTORNEY DISCUSSION ON BUDGET HEARINGS 35 

Attorney Williams noted he would have to leave the meeting before 5:00 p.m. and that he wanted 36 
to clarify the procedure on the adoption of the tentative millage and budget. He noted the 37 
resolutions will need to be read in their entirety and after the public has an opportunity to speak, 38 
the millage resolution must be approved before the budget resolution. He said if there are items in 39 
the budget that are still outstanding that might affect the millage rate, those items should be 40 
discussed before the vote is taken on the millage resolution. Mr. Drury added that all of the 41 
outstanding budget items have been noted in the agenda summary. 42 



Regular Council Meeting – September 3, 2014 
Page 4 of 15 
 
  
 
Xl. ORDINANCES/RESOLUTIONS 1 

Tab 5) Ordinance #2014-13 – Annexation & Rezoning of 11529 US 441 – ARG Investment – 2 
Dead River Marina – Read for First Reading Only 3 

TRANSMITTAL HEARING 4 

Tab 6) Ordinance #2014-14 – Large Scale Future Land Use Amendment – Transmittal 5 
Hearing – Dead River Marina 6 

Mr. Fitzgerald presented the following report: 7 
 8 
The subject property (Parcel Alternate Key Numbers 1811996 & 1586542) is 11.4 acres in size, 9 
located at the north side of U.S. 441 west of and including 7th Sunfish Street. The property abuts 10 
a Dollar General Store. The property is currently being used for boat, trailer and RV sales and 11 
storage and as a marina. The owner's long range plan is to redevelop this property in conformity 12 
with the city's Highway Commercial zoning regulations. An application to annex and rezone this 13 
property to a Highway Commercial designation is concurrently under consideration. This 14 
ordinance would amend the current Future Land Use Designation from Lake County Urban 15 
Medium Density to City Commercial.  16 
 17 
The city is required to place a future land use designation on annexed property. The subject 18 
property is currently designated County Urban Medium Density. A City Commercial designation is 19 
most compatible with surrounding property.   20 
  21 

Compatibility 22 
Properties adjacent and across the road from this property, both in the County and the City are 23 
commercial in nature. 24 

 25 
Site Conditions 26 

The property is currently being used for boat, trailer and RV sales and storage and as a marina.  27 
Approximately 5 acres of the property is designated as wetlands. Prior to any redevelopment, an 28 
approved site plan will be required. All applicable environmental assessments and permitting 29 
must be in place before the site plan is approved.    30 
 31 

Impact on City Services 32 
The subject property is located in the City’s Utility Service Area. The City of Tavares has 33 
municipal water and sewer services available.  34 
 35 

Mr. Fitzgerald stated the Planning & Zoning Board had voted to recommend approval and staff 36 
recommends approval. 37 

MOTION 38 

Kirby Smith moved to approve the transmittal of Ordinance #2014-14, seconded by 39 
Norman Hope. The motion carried unanimously 5-0. 40 



Regular Council Meeting – September 3, 2014 
Page 5 of 15 
 
  
 
Tab 7) Resolution #2014-25 – Agreement with FDOT for Seaplane Marker at US 441 1 
Entrance Pond 2 

Ms. Ross noted the resolution will authorize the city Administrator to sign an agreement with the 3 
Florida Department of Transportation for the installation of a seaplane marker at Welcome Lake 4 
(Chris Daniels Memorial Fountain). Ms. Ross said she has been working with Griffey Engineering 5 
to obtain the permit from FDOT to brand the entrance to Tavares with this marker. The 6 
agreement addresses future maintenance. The signing of the agreement does not obligate the 7 
Council to move ahead with the project and funding can be addressed in either the upcoming 8 
budget or the next fiscal year. The permit is expected to be valid for two years with a renewal 9 
option. 10 

MOTION 11 

Robert Speaks moved to approve Resolution #2014-25, seconded by Lori Pfister. The 12 
motion carried unanimously 5-0. 13 

Tab 8) Resolution #2014-20 – Special Use Permit for Veterinary Clinic – 220 N. Rockingham 14 

Mr. Fitzgerald presented the following report: 15 
 16 
 An application for a Special Use Permit has been received from Misfit Animal Rescue to operate 17 
a veterinary clinic at 220 North Rockingham Avenue. This property is located on the east side of 18 
Rockingham Avenue between East Maud and Alfred Streets. The property is within the Mixed 19 
Use Zoning District and a veterinary clinic is allowed only with the issuance of a Special Use 20 
Permit from City Council. 21 
 22 
This proposed use is compatible with surrounding properties that are generally commercial in 23 
nature. A recent amendment to the City's Land Development Regulations recognized that this 24 
use would be appropriate in a Mixed Use District subject to approval as a Special Use. In the 25 
City's LDRs, the animal hospital and veterinary clinic use category does allow animal boarding in 26 
completely enclosed buildings. A neighbor of the subject property addressed the Planning & 27 
Zoning Board and indicated that the boarding of animals may have a detrimental impact to the 28 
neighborhood. As a result of this input, the Planning & Zoning Board recommended approval of 29 
the Special Use Permit subject to the condition that boarding of animals be allowed only as 30 
necessary and in conjunction with the veterinary treatment of animals. Staff has added this 31 
condition to the Special Use Resolution.  32 
 33 
Councilmember Hope asked if the use was limited to small animals (i.e. not horses and cows). 34 
Mr. Fitzgerald said that language is not included; he said the assumption was that it would be for 35 
household domestic pets but this language could be included. 36 

Councilmember Smith said he was concerned about parking. Mr. Fitzgerald said there are about 37 
six or seven spaces in the back. Councilmember Smith asked about cleanup when pets are being 38 
walked. He asked to hear from the business owner. 39 

Kent Weber, 17500 Tuscanooga Road, Groveland 40 



Regular Council Meeting – September 3, 2014 
Page 6 of 15 
 
  
 
Mr. Weber said it will be a spay and neuter and inoculation clinic with no overnight boarding 1 
except for the rare medical necessity case. He said it is not scheduled to be a full service clinic at 2 
this time. He said the business is a non-profit rescue organization. He confirmed there will be 3 
bags and dispensers put outside the building for pet waste. He noted there are 6 or 7 parking 4 
spaces on the property and they are planning for staff to park elsewhere on public parking. 5 
Councilmember Smith asked about the noise factor. Mr. Weber said it is a concrete block building 6 
fully insulated and the noise should be contained. Vice Mayor Pfister asked if staff will be staying 7 
if a pet had to stay overnight. Mr. Weber said typically the veterinary staff does not stay overnight 8 
and a pet that is staying for a medical reason is usually sedated. 9 

Vice Mayor Pfister spoke in support but noted she still had to look after the needs of the 10 
residents. Councilmember Smith agreed said the concern of Council is that the use is being 11 
granted in a residential neighborhood and would be available to a future property owner. 12 

Councilmember Hope said the resolution states “Veterinary Clinic” which allows spaying and 13 
neutering as well as other veterinary activities. He asked if this was a request for both or just 14 
spaying and neutering. Mr. Weber said he was asking for both as spaying and neutering are 15 
considered surgery. He said they would also like the option to assist in a medical emergency if 16 
the vet is available. 17 

Attorney Williams suggested limiting the hours of service. The hours of 6 a.m. to 10:00 p.m. were 18 
suggested and discussion followed.  19 

Mr. Drury reiterated the conditions under consideration are: limited to domesticated animals; no 20 
livestock or exotic animals; pet waste dispensers on the exterior of the property to pick up pet 21 
waste; no overnight boarding unless related to a medical condition; and hours open to the general 22 
public will be 6:00 a.m. to 10:00 p.m. 23 

MOTION 24 

Kirby Smith moved to approve the resolution contingent with the stated amendments:  25 
limited to domesticated animals; no livestock or exotic animals; pet waste dispensers on 26 
the exterior of the property to pick up pet waste; no overnight boarding unless related to a 27 
medical condition; and hours open to the general public will be 6:00 a.m. to 10:00 p.m. The 28 
motion was seconded by Lori Pfister. The motion carried unanimously 5-0. 29 

Tab 9) Request to Address Council on 12 and Under Softball Program 30 

Mayor Wolfe gave the background to this agenda item. He discussed the softball team’s 31 
competition for state and district levels, the $250 that had been budgeted by the city and the $250 32 
authorized by Council on June 18th to attend the district tournament. He noted that the City had 33 
subsequently offered another $250 to the softball team when they qualified for the next level 34 
however the coach advised that she did not want the additional $250.00. 35 

Vice Mayor Pfister said the agenda summary reflected a 4-1 vote at the June 18th meeting and 36 
since she was not present at that meeting, the vote should reflect 3-1. 37 

Coach Robin Ross 38 



Regular Council Meeting – September 3, 2014 
Page 7 of 15 
 
  
 
Robin Ross said she had been unable to attend the June 18th meeting. She said those who 1 
attended relayed their disappointment to her. She said she believed that the girls’ softball 2 
program has not been supported by the city in the same way that the baseball program has been 3 
supported. She said she turned down the additional $250.00 because of statements made about 4 
taxpayer’s money. She said other cities participating in the softball tournaments provide better 5 
uniforms, back packs, matching helmets and matching cleats. She discussed her personal 6 
financial contribution to the program. 7 

Council Discussion 8 

Councilmember Hope asked if the city has treated the girls’ softball team differently than the male 9 
baseball team. He said if the City has done so, that would be wrong. He spoke in support of 10 
sports programs for the youth. He suggested that the staff should meet with the softball and 11 
baseball program participants to come up with a proposal to City Council as to how to run the 12 
programs to ensure equality of access to the tournaments.  13 

Mr. Drury stated that staff could develop a formalized plan for Council approval on the policy for 14 
distribution of public funds for support of the teams.  15 

Mayor Wolfe acknowledged that the funding has been different for the tournaments because of 16 
the status of the city’s budget in recent years.  17 

(At 5:05 p.m. the regular meeting was adjourned and the Public Hearing for the Tentative 18 
Millage and Tentative Budget convened.) 19 

lX. PUBLIC HEARING -  FISCAL YEAR 2014-2015 MILLAGE & BUDGET – 5:05 P.M. 20 

Reading of Millage and Budget Resolutions: 21 

Ms. Barnett read the tentative millage and tentative budget resolutions into the record as follows: 22 

  23 
RESOLUTION 2014 - 23 24 

 25 
A RESOLUTION ADOPTING A FINAL MILLAGE RATE OF 26 
6.6496 FOR THE CITY OF TAVARES, FLORIDA, FOR AD 27 
VALOREM TAXES FOR FISCAL YEAR 2014-2015; SETTING 28 
FORTH THE PERCENT BY WHICH THE MILLAGE RATE IS 29 
GREATER THAN THE "ROLLED-BACK" RATE. 30 

 31 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TAVARES, FLORIDA: 32 
 33 
WHEREAS, the City of Tavares of Lake County, Florida on September 3, 2014, adopted 34 

the 2014-2015 Fiscal Year Tentative Millage Rate following a public hearing as required by 35 
Florida Statute 200.065. 36 

 37 
WHEREAS, the City of Tavares of Lake County, Florida, following due public notice as 38 

required by law, held a second public hearing on September 17, 2014, as required by Florida 39 



Regular Council Meeting – September 3, 2014 
Page 8 of 15 
 
  
 
Statute 200.065 on the 2014-2015 Millage Rate; and 1 

 2 
WHEREAS, the gross taxable value for operating purposes not exempt from taxation 3 

within Lake County has been certified by the County Property Appraiser to the City of Tavares as 4 
$635,750,902. 5 

 6 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City of Tavares of Lake County, Florida, 7 

that: 8 
 9 

1. The City of Tavares Fiscal Year 2014-2015 operating millage rate to be levied is 10 
hereby set at 6.6496 mills, which millage rate is greater than the rolled back rate of 11 
6.3742 by 4.32%. 12 
 13 

2. The voted debt service millage rate is set at .4286 mills for Fiscal      Year 2014-14 
2015. 15 

 16 
3. This Resolution will take effect immediately upon its adoption. 17 

 18 
 PASSED AND RESOLVED this 17th day of September 2014 by the City Council of the 19 
City of Tavares, Florida.  Time Adopted:___________. 20 

 21 
 22 

RESOLUTION 2014 - 24 23 
 24 
A RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE FINAL BUDGET FOR THE 25 
CITY OF TAVARES, FLORIDA, FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2014 - 26 
2015. 27 

 28 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TAVARES, FLORIDA: 29 

 30 
WHEREAS, a public hearing on the proposed 2014-2015 budget was held at the 31 

Tavares City Hall Council Chambers in the City of Tavares, Florida,  Lake County, Florida on 32 
September 3rd, 2014 at 5:05 p.m., as required by Florida Statutes 200.065; and 33 
 34 

WHEREAS, the general public was given an opportunity to express its views 35 
pertaining to the proposed budget, and 36 
 37 

WHEREAS, the City Council approved the tentative budget for 2014-2015, and 38 
 39 

WHEREAS, a second public hearing on the proposed 2014-2015 budget was held 40 
in the Council Chambers at the Tavares City Hall, 201 East Main Street in the City of Tavares, 41 
Florida, on September 17, 2014, at 5:05 p.m., 42 
 43 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Budget for 2014-2015 fiscal year 44 
for the City of Tavares, Florida is hereby adopted by the Tavares City Council in the amount of 45 
$35,256,962, at public hearing this 17th day of September, 2014. 46 
 47 



Regular Council Meeting – September 3, 2014 
Page 9 of 15 
 
  
 
Tab 3) Resolution #2014-23 – Tentative Millage Rate – FY 2014-15 1 

Ms. Houghton reviewed the items that support the tentative millage. The balanced budget for the 2 
General Fund includes a millage rate of 6.6496 mils which incorporates the changes that Council 3 
has discussed throughout the budget workshop process and is balanced with a total General 4 
Fund budget of $13,817,601. She stated that this rate is the rollback rate of 6.3742 mills. The 5 
millage rate is .1965 mills over the current millage rate for the current fiscal year which 6.4531. 6 
The assessed taxable property value was $635,750,902 which is an increase of 5.50% from the 7 
prior year.  The budget includes some of the following: 8 

 3% Pay Increase for employees 9 
 PBA & IAFF Union Negotiation Changes. 10 
 FRS employer contributions are budgeted at blended rates as rate increases are effective 11 

July 1, 2014 (7.513% Regular Class & 21.631% Senior Management Class). 12 
 Staffing level decreases – Police Captain Position 13 
 New Positions: 14 

1) Warehouse/Customer Svc Assistant – Finance  Department 15 
2) Information Technology Analyst – Finance Department 16 
3) Roads Manager – General Services Department 17 
4) Solid Waste Driver I – Solid Waste Division 18 

 The Fire Pension contribution rate is budgeted at 19.7%  19 
 The Police Pension contribution rate is budgeted at to 21.26%. 20 
 Health insurance is budgeted at an overall blended increase of 11.9% over prior year 21 

premium rates and reflects a negotiated package for single and family coverage, life 22 
insurance, and short and long term disability. 23 

 An overall workers’ compensation rate increase of 4.2%. 24 
 A general liability rate increase of 5.4%. 25 
 The Tentative Budget includes the acquisition 6 new in police car video cameras. 26 
 Computer replacements in all departments phased in over a year. 27 
 The Tentative Budget includes: parking lot improvements at the Public Works Facility 28 

(Infrastructure Sales Tax), Alfred Street/Caroline Street Lighting, and a Bobcat Track 29 
Loader to maintain storm water ponds and parks.  30 

 Various equipment and improvements in the Utility Funds. 31 
 The Tentative Budget funds only operational costs critical to the service delivery mission. 32 
 The Tentative Millage maintains a similar level of service. 33 
 The Tentative Budget/Tentative Millage proposes to maintain an estimated General Fund 34 

reserve balance of $1,496,138 or 10.8% of the Tentative Budget to be broken out as 35 
follows: 36 
Reserves for unforeseen Emergencies:    $1,347,424 (90%) 37 
Reserves for unforeseen Contingencies:  $   148,714 (10%) 38 

 39 

Ms. Houghton noted the prior dates that Council had met to discuss the budget: 40 

- February 19th – City Council Meeting – City Council set broad budget goals 41 
- June 20th  - Draft Budget To City Council 42 



Regular Council Meeting – September 3, 2014 
Page 10 of 15 
 
  
 

- July 2nd – Draft Budget Presentation to City Council 1 
- July 16th – City Council Budget Workshop  2 
- July 30th – City Council Budget Workshop – Council sets Tentative Maximum Millage 3 
- July 24th – City Council Budget Workshop  4 
- August 6th – City Council Budget Workshop 5 
- August  20st –  City Council Budget Workshop 6 

 7 

Mr. Drury noted that in the agenda summary the outstanding budget items have been identified: 8 

1. Warehouse customer service assistant – This position does not affect the millage rate 9 
because it is not in the General Fund. The additional duty of turn ons and turn offs was 10 
added to the position. 11 

2. Computer software question regarding this position. That module is in the current city 12 
financial software so there will not be an additional cost. 13 

3. Wayfinding Signs: The downtown business group requested that Council consider adding 14 
those back into the budget. There was a wayfinding committee that applied for FDOT 15 
permits. Mr. Drury discussed the information he had provided regarding cost and 16 
equivalency to millage. 17 

4. Gateway Sign: Replacement of sign at hospital. The estimated cost is $32,000. 18 

Vice Mayor Pfister asked about the FDOT permits will be effective. Mr. Drury responded they 19 
are effective in perpetuity. 20 

 Public Hearing 21 

Mayor Wolfe invited public comment on the tentative millage. There was no comment. 22 

Council Discussion 23 

Councilmember Smith asked if there was anything in the PBA contract that would have an 24 
effect on the current millage rate under discussion. Mr. Drury said staff is waiting for the 25 
voting process to be finished and he did not anticipate any changes. 26 

Warehouse Position: Councilmember Smith said he continued to feel the size of the city did 27 
not justify the need for the warehouse position. Discussion followed on the position with a 28 
majority of Council indicating a preference to wait for an additional year to put this into the 29 
budget. 30 

Waterman Hospital Entry Sign. Mr. Drury explained the bidding process and noted it was 31 
hoped that the cost will be less than the estimated $32,000. He said staff will bring the design 32 
to City Council after it has been designed with an estimated probable cost by the engineer. 33 



Regular Council Meeting – September 3, 2014 
Page 11 of 15 
 
  
 

Councilmember Hope said he would like to see some of the wayfinding signs located on US 1 
441 to direct traffic to the downtown businesses. Mr. Drury noted the average cost is $6,000 2 
each and Council will have an opportunity to review the design and wording of the signs. 3 

Vice Mayor Pfister noted she still continued to support the warehouse position and spoke in 4 
support of the wayfinding signs.  5 

Discussion followed on the location for three of the wayfinding signs and a proposed addition 6 
of $50,000 to cover the entrance sign and the three wayfinding signs. 7 

Mr. Drury summarized that adding $50,000 to the proposed millage rate will result in a new 8 
millage rate of 6.7283. The current millage rate is 6.4531. The difference in rate is .2752 or 9 
about a quarter of a mill. Ms. Houghton said it will be 5.56% above the rollback rate. 10 

Mayor Wolfe asked how much is in the recreation budget for post season participation. Ms. 11 
Rogers answered that within the program costs there are monies earmarked but not 12 
specifically for tournament fees. Mr. Drury said on page 183 there is $35,000 budgeted for the 13 
spring program. Within that budget there are line items for uniforms, etc. He said he believed 14 
there are sufficient funds in the budget for the program but that staff will need to develop the 15 
policy on allocation of the funds for tournaments and staff will also prepare a detailed 16 
breakdown of all expenses for the program. 17 

Vice Mayor Pfister recommended a mechanism for the money for tournament play to be rolled 18 
over to the next budget year if it was not used in a given fiscal year.  19 

Mayor Wolfe asked Ms. Houghton if the decision not to budget for the warehouse position 20 
would affect any type of rating or audits. Ms. Houghton said if the city is not able to perform at 21 
the level that the auditors believe is necessary, then the city could end up with an audit 22 
finding. Mr. Drury said this will not affect the city’s ratings. 23 

Mayor Wolfe asked Ms. Houghton to document her time taking care of the auditing issue in 24 
preparation for next year’s budgeting process. 25 

Ms. Houghton stated that by increasing the budget by $50,000 this will bring the millage rate 26 
to 6.7283 and it is $5.56% above the rollback rate. The change for the warehouse position will 27 
not affect the millage rate; it will be a decrease in transfers in to the general fund and the 28 
expenditure will be removed. 29 

MOTION 30 

Norman Hope moved to set the tentative millage rate at 6.7283, seconded by Robert 31 
Speaks. The motion carried unanimously 5-0. 32 

Tab 4) Resolution #2014-24 – Adoption of the Tentative Fiscal Year 2015 Budget 33 

 Mr. Drury asked Ms. Houghton to provide the updated budget for the General Fund with an 34 
addition of $50,000 wayfinding signs and one gateway sign. 35 



Regular Council Meeting – September 3, 2014 
Page 12 of 15 
 
  
 
Councilmember Smith asked if the stormwater fee could be reduced from .75 to .50. by saving 1 
the $52,000 for the warehouse position. 2 

Mr. Drury noted a utility rate study is currently being done. It will be presented in October to 3 
Council and rates will be set for the next five years. He said that would be the time to address the 4 
stormwater rate. 5 

Ms. Houghton stated the new General Fund adjusted budget will be $13,816,153.  6 

Mayor Wolfe invited public comment on the tentative budget for 2015.  7 

Lou Buigas, Downtown Business Owner 8 

Ms. Buigas thanked Council for considering the wayfinding signs for the businesses. 9 

MOTION 10 

Norman Hope moved to approve the General Fund tentative budget of $13,816,153 (as read 11 
by Ms. Houghton), seconded by Kirby Smith. The motion carried unanimously 5-0. 12 

Xl. GENERAL GOVERNMENT 13 
 14 
BUDGET HEARING ADJOURNED AND REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING RECONVENED 15 
AT 5:58 P.M. 16 

Tab 9) Request to Discuss Softball Program (Continued) 17 

Councilmember Smith said he would not participate in any decisions that would be discriminatory 18 
or show favoritism. He discussed the sponsorship flyers that had been sent out by the team to 19 
solicit various levels of funding. He pointed out that the City Administrator had approved the 20 
additional $250.00 from the budget because there was no time to convene a special City Council 21 
meeting to approve any other amount which might have had to come from General Reserves. He 22 
then explained that he has consistently opposed to taking money out of reserves while serving on 23 
City Council. He said he had requested Council to approve a policy that General Reserves be 24 
further separated for emergencies and for contingencies which was done and is in effect.  25 

Ms. Ross said she had never asked for anything from Council in 10 years. Mr. Drury said Council 26 
is asking to focus on the future and will review a policy on how much is spent for all items in the 27 
program. Councilmember Speaks asked to move the agenda. 28 

Tab 10) Approval of Contract with International Association of Firefighters, Local 3245. 29 

Chief Keith noted the city negotiating team of Mayor Wolfe, Mr. Drury and himself met with the 30 
President of the Local 3245, Mark Kidd in negotiating the contract changes. The salient points 31 
are: 32 

 3% cost of living adjustment payable when the increase becomes effective for all city 33 
employees 34 



Regular Council Meeting – September 3, 2014 
Page 13 of 15 
 
  
 

 Increased paramedic incentive from $1.93 to $2.50 per hour 1 

MOTION 2 

Norman Hope moved to approve the collective bargaining agreement, Article 33, between 3 
the Tavares Professional Firefighters Local 3245 and the City of Tavares, seconded by 4 
Robert Speaks. The motion carried unanimously 5-0. 5 

Tab 11) Police Benevolent Association Contract – Tabled to next meeting 6 

Tab 12) Naming Options for West End of Wooton Park 7 

Mr. Drury reviewed the referendum that had passed regarding the purchase of the additional 8 
property on the west end of the lake and the status of the design. He noted that when setting 9 
goals for next year, Councilmember Smith had recommended that Council consider providing a 10 
name for the expansion area.  11 

Mr. Drury said the Mayor had recommended Ratliff Memorial Park, however, after further 12 
discussion, staff was asked come back with options for a mechanism for selecting a name. He 13 
said he had provided five options to Council:  develop a public contest; have Council submit 14 
names; develop an on line survey for suggested names; ask for involvement from the public 15 
schools; and decide to not name the area separately and continue to consider it as a part of 16 
Wooton Park.  He noted the ballot language referred to it as “Wooton Park”. He said the Historical 17 
Society has forwarded a letter recommending that it continue to be known as Wooton Park. 18 

Brenda Smith, President, Tavares Historical Society 19 

Ms. Smith said that since 1948 when Mr. and Mrs. Wooton gave the property to Tavares for the 20 
park for the sole purpose of the residents to enjoy, it has been known as Wooton Park. She said 21 
this is engrained in the citizenry and it is important to keep it as “Wooton Park” as people know 22 
where Wooton Park is located. 23 

Discussion followed with consensus of Council not to change the name. Councilmember Smith 24 
said he did not like the word “expansion” and that he agreed with keeping it as Wooton Park but 25 
to eliminate the word “expansion.” 26 

Tab 12) Approval of Final Design Plans for the Wooton Park Project 27 

Mr. Neron said the design had been broken into two phases: preliminary and final. In March of 28 
2014 Council approved authorization for the architect and engineer firms to go forward with the 29 
final design. In January of 2013 there was discussion of the conceptual plan. Based on the 30 
current design it is estimated the open space area will be 2.6 acres of the 4.3 acres. The plans 31 
include a new triple wide boat ramp with 20 plus boat paved parking spaces, a new restroom 32 
building adjacent to the parking area, the extension of the Tav Lee Trail from the current Wooton 33 
Park all the way to Main Street, a gazebo/observation deck, a fishing pier, and other related 34 
amenities such as benches, landscaping and lighting along the Tav Lee Trail. 35 



Regular Council Meeting – September 3, 2014 
Page 14 of 15 
 
  
 
Mr. Baldocchi from AVCON Inc. said the project has invoked enthusiasm for its multi-modal park 1 
features. He discussed the design features of site lighting for the parking area, boat ramp and 2 
along the trail and the minor landscaping along the trail, sodding of the open area, and expanding 3 
the beach volley ball court to add the second court. He said there will be 24 parking spaces for 4 
the automobile and boat trailer hookup and there is additional pavement left as asphalt which will 5 
provide flexibility. The boat ramp will be 80 feet wide. The slope is important for functionality and 6 
maintainability of the ramp and was reviewed by a sub engineering consultant.  7 

Mr. Baldocchi reviewed the floor plan of the restroom and the plan for the extension of the Tav 8 
Lee trail through the downtown. He noted this portion of the trail is part of an FDOT LAP grant 9 
and is under review by FDOT. 10 

Mayor Wolfe asked if a review of future water levels had been done in case of a drought. Mr. 11 
Baldacci said that research had been done for lake levels during the past 30 years to 12 
accommodate historical highs and historical lows. Mayor Wolfe asked about the trees planned for 13 
the Tav Lee Trail. Mr. Drury said that the Council should give feedback on the trees at some point 14 
and a decision should be made at a future Council meeting. Mr. Baldocchi said the landscaping is 15 
eligible under the FDOT grant. 16 

Mr. Neron noted the realignment of the trail (shown on the conceptual plan) at the current boat 17 
ramp is not part of this project. He said in the current plan the Tav Lee will not be moved to the 18 
rear in this particular phase of the project because of funding issues. Councilmember Hope noted 19 
he had promoted the project with the understanding that the trail would be moved to not conflict 20 
with the seaplanes coming up the ramp. Mr. Baldocchi said that is still the future plan but not part 21 
of the LAP grant as FDOT typically only funds new construction. Mr. Drury stated this realignment 22 
of the trail can be designed and engineered and then application can be made to an FDOT 23 
aviation grant for this component. Mayor Wolfe asked the estimated cost to wrap around the trail. 24 
Mr. Baldocchi said he would forward that information. 25 

MOTION 26 

Norman Hope moved to approve the final design of the Wooton Park project, seconded by 27 
Kirby Smith. The motion carried unanimously 5-0. 28 

Xl. OLD BUSINESS 29 
 30 
Xll. NEW BUSINESS 31 
 32 
Xlll. AUDIENCE TO BE HEARD   33 
 34 
XlV. REPORTS 35 
 36 
Tab 14) City Administrator 37 
 38 
Mr. Drury noted he had provided a list of upcoming meetings and reminded everyone that the 39 
Grand Opening tickets for the opening of the pavilion have been available for two days and 30% 40 
have been sold. 41 



Regular Council Meeting – September 3, 2014 
Page 15 of 15 
 
  
 
 1 
Economic Development Director 2 
Mr. Neron stated the International Jet Ski Competition is being moved to Tavares and will take 3 
place the first weekend in November with a large attendance expected. 4 
 5 
Community Services Director 6 
Ms. Rogers said the first wedding at the Pavilion was a tremendous success. 7 
 8 
Finance Director 9 
Ms. Houghton said the advertising for final public hearing on the budget will be in the newspaper 10 
on September 14th. 11 
 12 
Tab 15) City Council 13 
 14 
Vice Mayor Pfister 15 
Vice Mayor Pfister spoke with enthusiasm about football season with special emphasis on Notre 16 
Dame. She also encouraged those present to come downtown and watch the games at the local 17 
restaurants. 18 
 19 
Councilmember Hope 20 
Councilmember Hope said he had come early on Tuesday to obtain his ticket for the opening of 21 
the Pavilion. He said he looked forward to the event and noted that the pavilion will be a great 22 
asset to the City. 23 
 24 
Councilmember Smith 25 
Councilmember Smith said on this date in 1777 the Stars and Stripes American flag was flown for 26 
the very first time in battle. 27 
 28 
Councilmember Speaks 29 
Councilmember Speaks noted that the gentleman [Robert Heft] who designed the 50 star current 30 
American flag came from his hometown of Lancaster, Ohio and it was a project for his high 31 
school history class. He said [Mr. Heft’] teacher offered him an A in the class if he was able to get 32 
Congress to pass the flag and he received his A. 33 
   34 
Mayor Wolfe 35 
Mayor Wolfe noted he would try to make the October 11th gala although he might be attending his 36 
son’s home coming game in Iowa. 37 
 38 
Adjournment 39 
 40 
There was no further business and the meeting was adjourned at 6:57 p.m. 41 
 42 
Respectfully submitted, 43 
 44 
 45 
Nancy A. Barnett, C.M.C. 46 
City Clerk 47 


